Selectboard Meeting Minutes
December 08, 2025
Present: Pat Harvey, Chad Richardson, and Mike Teetsel

Guests Present: Kristen LaPell, Julie Smith, Nancy Woolley, Orca Media, Bruce Jones, Vic
Ribaudo, Deb Moore, Steve Hoffman, Deb Scherrer, Donald & Jean Murray, Jake & Bonnie
Wildwood, Alvina Harvey, Ross Jaquith, Tara Murray, and Jannah Murray Swedick

Guests Present on Microsoft Teams: Orca, Martha Slater, Troy LaPell, Ben Falk, Erica Falk,
Mary Fratini, Regina Cahill Poole, Lori Church, Mickaela Richardson, and Brenda Downs

Pat called the meeting at 5:00 p.m.
Pat confirmed the open meeting law conformity.

Prior Meeting Minutes: Pat moved to approve November 24, 2025, Selectboard minute. Mike
seconded. All in favor, So, approved.

Highway Updates: John sent word that he has been plowing every other day, and everything is
going well.

Repurposing High School Committee Updates:

Vic shared there are maintenance issues with the heating system. There is a temperature monitor
in place where he and Robert Meagher are on call at night and Asia, who would be on during the
day when the heat goes below 42 degrees. They would need to go in and manually set the boilers
to come back up to temperature. They are looking to go to an automated restart system. They
will come back with a recommendation.

The other good news is they will be meeting with a potential childcare operator. It would be a
turnkey arrangement where they would come in and set it up and hire a director. This would
cover infants, toddlers and preschoolers. Maureen Young has been spearheading this endeavor.
They will know more at their next meeting.

Selectboard Updates: Pat shared that the Better Connection Grant application that was
submitted was not accepted. They asked the town to apply again and will be working on a more
palatable application in the upcoming next year. This was a grant for connecting a path for
walking dogs, improving a bike path or sidewalks. We still have funding for sidewalk
replacement on Brook Street so we will continue to try and hope to receive the Better
Connections Grant next go around.

Driveway Permit for Vadnais: Nancy Vadnais submitted a new driveway permit for 1962
Maple Hill Road. The permit was reviewed by the road foreman. He made notes on the permit.



Pat moved to approve the driveway permit located at 1962 Maple Hill Road. Mike seconded the
motion. All in favor. So, approved.

Delinquent Utility Discussion: Chad said there are delinquent utility balances out there that
haven’t been actively pursued. He said as utility commissioners, he would like to seek payments
with a little more intensity. He would like to send out disconnection notices with the next billing
cycle to encourage payment installment agreements as an incentive to clean up their accounts
and avoid disconnection in the spring. Chad made a motion for the Town Clerk, Julie to send
these notification letters out with January 1, 2026, billing. Pat seconded. All in favor. So,
approved.

Park Use Application-Rochester Public Library 12/19 6-7 pm Family Winter Event: Pat
moved to approve the event held by the Library on December 19 from 6-7 pm. Mike seconded.
All in favor. So, approved. The bandstand will be off limits.

P&Z Request for Town Attorney assistance: The Planning Commission has requested
assistance from the Town Attorney to review their conclusions on the Cell Tower before
submission. Pat moved to approve the Planning Commission to reach out to the Town Attorney
for review documents. Mike seconded. All in favor. So, approved.

Public Input: Cell Tower Proposal: Pat opened discussion on the Cell Tower noting the PUC
has received the petition to install a cell tower just south of Rochester on Route 100. She
indicated there have been two interviews by the PUC with Verizon/Vortex. She would like to
encourage all to go to the website and submit comments and read the documents that have been
submitted. Pat asked to keep comments for 3 minutes. As a board the selectboard will be
listening to testimony, comments, opinions and on December 22, 2025, regular scheduled
selectboard meeting they will reveal their opinion as well as submitting it into the PUC.

The floor was open to comments and Tara Murray, State Garage Road, commented on something
new she found. She has asked about zoning bylaws associated with the tower. She reviewed
some of the documents provided on the PUC by Verizon and found something important to point
out. In the town plan it specifically says that for telecommunication towers we need to abide by
zoning by laws. If you go to the zoning bylaws that were submitted by Verizon, note section B &
D. She said not following the town plan is actually a violation of the town bylaws. She also
wanted to point out the coverage gaps and how they are everywhere.

Deb Moore, Rochester, commented on discussion at the Planning meeting concerning
connectivity. She feels the main point to get across is if there is a problem with connectivity we
need to sit down together and discuss other options. She felt the tower was not the only plan,
there were other kinds of answers.

Jake Wildwood, Rochester, agreed with Tara and read through the whole Town Plan and said the
tower violates with the plan. He feels after reading its black and white and violates the wording.
He said there is new evidence on the slope and that is an issue.



Jannah Murray Swedick, Maple Hill, following up on an email her husband sent to the board.
She said he is a Civil Engineer and surveyor. With all the discussion on the grade of the slope, he
decided to do an assessment of the slope with his CAD drawings. He found the slope is up to
80% grade in places. She said to follow the town plan.

Alvina Harvey, Rochester spoke and understands that this is a contentious issue. She asks that
the Town Plan be respected and abided by. She said after speaking with Kevin at Two Rivers,
Kevin would be happy to write a letter if directed by the selectboard and include their input for
support.

Ben Falk, Rochester asked when the board was in touch with Two Rivers. Pat responded at the
end of November. He said they have a lot of support to give. He said it would be good to reach
out to them.

Pat said the selectboard’s role in this is not to mirror the Planning Board. She said they come
from a different angle. She said there is a lot of talk about the Town Plan and the Planning
Commission has poured hours into that. The selectboard is coming from the public good of the
town, the growth. She said the Selectboard has a different role as it was designed to do.

Mary Fratini spoke on behalf of the Planning Commission noting about the process of filing the
petition. She said the petition has been filed with the PUC and is technically still under review.
She said it has not been declared administratively complete. Until it is declared the clerk of the
commission will not send out the official letter telling those who are a party to the case that this
petition has started. The Town has not received the letter, because the petition is still under
review waiting to be filed. When that happens the clerk of the commission will send out a letter
to everyone who has party status, which will include the Town of Rochester, the Regional
Planning Commission, the town planning commission, abutting landowners and other people.
She just wanted to offer procedural clarification.

Pat asked Mary about the deadline shown on the PUC website. Mary said when we get the
official letter it should state “this petition has been administratively complete as of.....” the end
of the official 30-day comment will be ... and that is 30 days from the date it is declared
administratively complete. We are working as if the deadline is going to be the 29" of December
but maybe just a placeholder on the PUC website.

Don Murray, Wes Young Drive, Rochester, commented on the analysis that David Swedick
provided to the board is correct. He felt someone should hire an independent firm, paid for by
Vertex to do an assessment of the grade. He feels Vertex misrepresented the information and
feels it is much worse than that. He felt Vertex misrepresented their information also on the
balloon test. He said there were more than four sites of vision. He said it could be seen from
hundreds of sites. He also said Vertex was supposed to consider alternatives. He said they should
have considered pole cells. He said the coverage is also misrepresented and not all areas will
have coverage. He also commented on Dan McKinley asking about Vertex posting a bond and
felt clearly there should be a bond posted.

Deb Scherrer said that if only one point violates the town plan that should be sufficient.



Pat noted there is a very large document that has been drafted on the Vermont Public Service
Board in its final draft. She said this is a 10-year plan for telecommunications and broadband.
She said it does have a lot of information on the public service board view on future of
telecommunications and broadband in the state. Something to consider reading as well.

Ross Jacquith commented also on his concerns with the slope grade assessment that David
Swedick provided.

Pat said it might be worth noting that the reference that only four sites seen in town for the
balloon test is a little out of context. Pat said they visited 13 sites, and four were visible. It was
only a sampling.

Deb Scherrer said it was not statistically accurate if they didn’t do it on a precise measurement.
Noting it would have been better to have it be a more encompassing statistic.

Erica Falk asked how many selectboard had attended the planning meeting. Pat noted all 3 of
them attended. She said specifically the Telecommunication facilities under prohibited locations
states wetlands, the threatened species habitat, and she said it sounded like the planning
commission tried to find workarounds. She said the prohibited locations should be clear and not
a workaround.

Jean Murray, Wes Young Drive, she was under the impression that the town plan was written
long time ago. She said she was quite surprised it was recently written and the board not
defending the plan.

Nancy Woolley said when the Town Plan was presented there was a public meeting before
acceptance or voting on it. She said it was not well attended. She said it was a warned public
meeting.

Tegan Murray, Wes Young Drive commented on the town plan. She said if we open ourselves up
to future developers taking advantage of our leaders. She wanted more evidence to be included
with the selectboards input.

Steve Hoffman, Rochester, asked if any member had been on that slope. Pat shared it was a fairly
well traveled snowmobile trail. He said he understands the role of the selectboard but is
wondering about the liability or accountability of the 600-billion-dollar corporation that does not
care about town or its people.

Regina Cahill Poole 791 Route 100 South commented on the number of things wrong with this
project and other options are not looked at.

Bruce Jones, Rochester wanted to know what all board members think about this. The board has
been collecting all information before making comments.

Alvina Harvey commented on the safety issues and feels strongly about fire safety on that
mountain specific to lightning. She is concerned with the summer dry months.



Deb Moore commented on Public good to the issue and who decides. She said you would go to
the town plan and that would be the criteria that would be used.

Ross Jadquith commented about the town and safety with expanding the town. He said that there
are lot of small towns that didn’t fight back. He said do we want to be a little town and let the big
corporation win.

Meeting adjourned at 6:34 pm

Respectfully submitted,
Julie Smith

Meeting adjourned at

Respectfully Submitted,
Julie Smith



